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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE EIGHTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF ARCHIDPLY 

DECOR LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON TUESDAY, 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2025 AT 12.30 P.M. AT THE 

REGISTRERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT SY. NO.19, KSSIDC INDUSTRIAL AREA, BANGALORE 

ROAD, KATMACHANAHALLI, CHINTAMANI, CHIKABALLAPUR, KARNATAKA -563125 TO TRANSACT THE 

FOLLOWING BUSINESS: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the audited standalone financial statements of the company for the financial year  

 ended March 31, 2025, together with the reports of the board of directors and auditors thereon and in this 

 regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT the audited standalone financial statements of the company for the financial year 

 ended March 31, 2025 and the reports of the board of directors and auditors thereon as circulated to the 

 shareholders, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Shyam Daga (DIN: 00561803) who retires by rotation as per Section 

 152(6) of Companies Act 2013 and being eligible offers himself for re appointment and in this regard, to 

 consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 152 and other applicable provisions of 

 the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Shyam Daga (DIN: 00561803), who retires by rotation at this meeting and 

 being eligible, has offered himself for reappointment, be and is hereby appointed as a director of the com

 pany, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider and if thought fit, approve the appointment of CS Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing Company 

 Secretary as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a first term of five years and to pass with or without 

 modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 

 the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder and Securities and Exchange Board of India 

 (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time 

 (including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 

 being in force), consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded, to appoint CS 

 Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary, Proprietor of Rajneesh Sharma & Co, (CP No: 24210 

 and Peer Review Certificate No. PRC:5544/2024) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company to conduct 

 secretarial audit for the first term of five consecutive years commencing from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029-30 

 on such remuneration and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses for the purpose of audit as may be 

 approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board to avail 

 or obtain from the Secretarial Auditors, such other services or certificates, reports, or opinions which the 

 Secretarial Auditors may be eligible to provide or issue under the applicable laws, at a remuneration to be 

 determined by the Audit committee/Board of Directors of the Company. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorised to take all actions 

 and do all such deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any 

 question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard.”
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4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable 

 provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, [the Act) and the Rules made thereunder, read with 

 Schedule IV of the said Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

 Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) [including any statutory modification(s)or 

 re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Neeraj 

 Kumar Mittal (DIN: 00900714), Independent Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration 

 that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in the Act and Listing Regulations, and who is 

 eligible for re-appointment and in respect of whom based on his evaluation of performance, the 

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee has recommended his re-appointment to the Board, be and is 

 hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a second term of 5 

 (Five) years, commencing from 28th September, 2025 to 27th September, 2030."

5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 and other applicable 

 provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, [the Act) and the Rules made thereunder, read with 

 Schedule IV of the said Act and Regulation 16[1l[b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

 Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) [including any statutory modification(sl or 

 re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Articles of Association of the Company, Dinesh 

 Kumar Marda (DIN- 03267281), Independent Director of the Company, who has submitted a declaration 

 that he meets the criteria for independence as provided in the Act and Listing Regulations, and who is 

 eligible for re-appointment and in respect of whom based on his evaluation of performance, the 

 Nomination and Remuneration Committee has recommended his re-appointment to the Board, be and is 

 hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company to hold office for a second term of 5 

 [Five) years, commencing from 28th September, 2025 to 27th September, 2030."

By Order of the Board of Directors

For ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED

     

Place: Bangalore                       Siva Kiran Mavoori 

Date: 13.08.2025                                    Company Secretary

    

Registered Office:

Sy. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial Area, 

Bangalore Road, Katmachanahalli, 

Chintamani, Chikaballapur, Karnataka -563125 

CIN: L20231KA2017PLC179929
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NOTES:

1. Information regarding appointment/re-appointment of Directors and Explanatory Statement in respect of 

 special business to be transacted pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and/or 

 Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) is annexed hereto.

2. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (“the Meeting/ AGM”) is entitled to 

 appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of him/her and the proxy need not be a Member of 

 the Company. The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited, duly 

 completed and signed, at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the 

 commencement of the Meeting. A proxy form is attached herewith.

 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not 

 more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member holding 

 more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a 

 single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

3. The proxy holder shall prove his/her identity at the time of attending the Meeting.

4. When a Member appoints a proxy and both the Member and proxy attend the Meeting, the proxy stands 

 automatically revoked.

5. Requisition for inspection of proxies shall be received by the Company in writing from a Member entitled 

 to vote on any resolution at least three days before the commencement of the Meeting.

6. Corporate Members intending to attend the Meeting are required to send to the Company a certified copy 

 of the Board Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their 

 representative to attend and vote at the Meeting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to the 

 Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to deepakksadhu@gmail.com  with a copy 

 marked to evoting@nsdl.com.

7. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names 

 will be entitled to vote.

8. The Register of Member and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 23rd of 

 September, 2025 to 30th of September, 2025 (both days inclusive) in connection with the Annual General 

 Meeting.

9. SEBI has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the 

 securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their 

 PAN to their depository participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit 

 their PAN details to the RTA.

10. Since, the securities of the Company are traded compulsorily in dematerialized form as per SEBI man

 date, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to get their shares dematerialized at the 

 earliest.

11. Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2024-25, Notice of the aforesaid AGM of the Company, inter alia, 

 indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent 

 to all the Members whose email IDs are registered with the Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer 

 Agent/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any Member has requested for a 

 hard copy of the same. The physical copies of the Notice of the aforesaid AGM of the Company, inter alia, 

 indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form are being sent 

 to the registered address of the Members of the Company who have not registered their e-mail address 

 in the permitted mode.

ANNUAL REPORT - 2024 - 25 

4



12. In keeping with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ Green Initiative measures, the Company hereby 

 requests the Members who have not registered their email addresses so far, to register their email 

 addresses for receiving all communication including annual report, notices, circulars etc. from the 

 Company electronically.

13. The Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 

 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 

 shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules issued 

 thereunder are open for inspection by the Members at the registered office of the Company on all working 

 days, except Saturdays, between 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. and also at the AGM. Also, the Notice for this 

 8th AGM along with requisite documents and the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 shall also 

 be available on the Company’s website www.archidplydecor.com. Further, the notice received, if any, 

 under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be put up on the website of the Company up to the 

 date of the Meeting.

14. In accordance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

 Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 

 Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has engaged the services of 

 NSDL to provide the facility of voting by electronic voting system to all the Members to enable them to 

 cast their votes electronically in respect of all the businesses to be transacted at the aforesaid Meeting. 

 The facility of casting the votes by the Members using such electronic voting system from a place other 

 than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) is being provided by NSDL.

15. The facility for voting through Poll/Ballot Paper shall be made available at the AGM and the Members 

 attending the Meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right 

 to vote at the Meeting through Poll/ Ballot Paper. The facility for voting by electronic voting system shall 

 not be made available at the AGM of the Company.

16. Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are 

 requested to write to the Company on or before 27th September, 2025 through email on 

 bangalore@archidply.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably. Documents referred to in 

 this Notice will be made available for inspection as per applicable statutory requirements.

17. The Company has designated a separate e-mail ID of the grievance redressal division/Compliance officer 

 i.e. ‘bangalore@archidply.com’, exclusively for the purpose of registering complaints by investors. 

18. In accordance with, the General Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 and General Circular 

 No. 2/2021 dated 13th January, 2021 issued by MCA, and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/

 CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May, 2020 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th 

 January, 2021 issued by SEBI, owing to the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the 

 financial statements (including Report of Board of Directors, Auditor’s report or other documents required 

 to be attached therewith), such statements including the Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic mode 

 to Members whose e-mail address is registered with the Company or the Depository Participant(s). 

 Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report will also be available on the Company’s website 

 https://www.archidplydecor.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock 

 Exchange of India Limited at www. Bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website 

 of NSDL i.e. . www.evoting.nsdl.com.

19. The e-voting facility will be available during the following voting period: 

 a. Commencement of remote e-voting: From 10.00 a.m. IST of September 27, 2025. 

 b. End of remote e-voting: Up to 5.00 p.m. IST of September 29, 2025.
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20. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 

 dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. September 23, 2025, may cast their vote electronically. 

 The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter and the facility will be blocked 

 forthwith.

21. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 

 Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also 

 advised to not leave their demat account(s) dormant for a long time. Periodic statement of holdings 

 should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified from time 

 to time.

22. The route map showing directions to reach the venue of the Meeting is annexed.

23. Members can send their requests, if any, to bangalore@archidply.com and naveenkiran.l@kfintech.com 

 /einward.ris@kfintech.com

24. Voting Options 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id 

in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL.

 Login Method

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

 https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 

 mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 

 icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will 

 prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 

 successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 

 under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under 

 e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

 company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

 re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

 the remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for IDeAS 

 e-Services, option to register is available at 

 https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” 

 or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

 following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

 Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
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Type of shareholders

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL

 Login Method

 launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

 ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 

 to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number 

 hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 

 on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 

 to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

 company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

 redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

 the remote e-Voting period. 

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

 Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 

 seamless voting experience.

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 

 through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 

 available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 

 The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 

 www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 

 Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 

 e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in prog

 ress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the 

 evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 

 e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote 

 e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access 

 the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 

 the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

 available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 

 New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

 Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available 

 on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in 

demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

 https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

 ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code 

 as shown on the screen.

 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

 https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using 

 your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Type of shareholders

Individual Shareholders (holding 

securities in demat mode) login 

through their depository partici-

pants

 Login Method

 user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 

 Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to 

 see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also 

 able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 

e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 

to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL

Helpdesk details

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 

sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 

sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 

no. 1800 22 55 33
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Manner of holding shares i.e. 

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 

Physical

a) For Members who hold 

shares in demat account with 

NSDL.

b) For Members who hold 

shares in demat account with 

CDSL.

c) For Members holding shares 

in Physical Form.

 Your User ID is:

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user 

ID is IN300***12******.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is 

12**************

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

 a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and 

  cast your vote.

 b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

  password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need 

  to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

 c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

  (i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

   password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 

   NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open  

   the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 

   last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form.  

   The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

  (ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 

   those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

 a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

  NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

 b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

  www.evoting.nsdl.com.

 c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

  evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name  

  and your registered address etc.

 d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 

  e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 

 shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 

 for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 

 page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

 (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature 

 of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

 deepakksadhu@gmail.com  with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. 

 other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 

 Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under 

 "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 

 keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 

 attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 

 Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 

 reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 

 e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 

 call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.com 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring 

user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 

 of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 

 attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to bangalore@archidply.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 

 beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested 

 scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 

 bangalore@archidply.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you 

 are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for 

 Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.
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3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and 

 password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

 Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

 maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their 

 mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

                          By Order of the Board of Directors

         For ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED

Place: Bangalore             Siva Kiran Mavoori

Date: 13.08.2025                                   Company Secretary

Registered Office:            

Sy. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial Area, 

Bangalore Road, Katmachanahalli, 

Chintamani, Chikaballapur,

Karnataka -563125 

 

CIN: L20231KA2017PLC179929
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013 AND / OR REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

ITEM No. 3

Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third 

Amendment) Regulations, 2024, on the basis of recommendation of Board of Directors, a listed company is 

required to appoint or re-appoint an individual as Secretarial Auditor for not more than one term of five consecu-

tive years; or a Secretarial Audit firm as Secretarial Auditor for not more than two terms of five consecutive years,, 

with the approval of the shareholders in annual general meeting. 

In view of the above, on the basis of recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at its meet-

ing held on May 22, 2025 have appointed CS Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary, Proprietor of 

Rajneesh Sharma & Co. (CP No: 24210 and Peer Review Certificate No. PRC:5544/2024) as Secretarial Auditor 

of the Company to conduct secretarial audit for a period of five consecutive years from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30. 

The appointment is subject to approval of the Members of the Company. While recommending CS Rajneesh 

Sharma for appointment, the Audit Committee and the Board considered the past audit experience of the particu-

larly in auditing listed companies, valuated various factors, including the CS Rajneesh Sharma's capability to 

handle a complex business environment, his existing clientele it serves, and his technical expertise. 

Pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of SEBI Listing Regulations as amended, the credentials and terms of appointment 

of CS Rajneesh Sharma, are as under:

Profile:

CS Rajneesh Sharma, leading Practising Company Secretary has a distinguished record extending over six year 

of excellence in Corporate Governance and Compliance. Rajneesh Sharma & Co is widely recognized for its 

expertise in Secretarial Audits, Compliance Audits, and Due Diligence across sectors like Manufacturing, banking, 

financial services, FMCG, and infrastructure etc.

CS Rajneesh Sharma is peer reviewed / Quality reviewed (Peer Review No.: 5544/2024) and is eligible to be 

appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company and are not disqualified in terms of SEBI Listing Regulations 

read with SEBI Circular dated December 31, 2024.

Terms of appointment: 

CS Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary is proposed to be appointed for the first term of five consec-

utive years conducting secretarial audit from FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30. The proposed fees payable to Mr. 

Rajneesh Sharma, is Rs. 1.00 lakhs per annum. The said fees shall exclude GST, certification fees, applicable 

taxes, reimbursements and other outlays. 

The Audit Committee/ Board is proposed to be authorised to revise the secretarial audit fee, from time to time. 

The Board of Directors recommends the said resolution, as set out in item 3 of this Notice for your approval. 

None of the Directors or key managerial personnel or their relatives is in any way concerned or interested, finan-

cially or otherwise in the said resolution.
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ITEM NO. 4

Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal is a commerce graduate and having over 30 years of rich experience in field of plastics 

business. He is the Director in Plasmix Private Ltd which is one of the leading manufacturers of antifibrillant 

master batches, additive master batches, colour master batches and engineering compounds in south India for 

the past 20 years. He is also a director in M.G. Metals Private Limited and Micro Carbonates Private Limited. He 

has over all 30 years of expertise in Business Management, Finance and Accounts of the Company. 

Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal is appointed as independent director of the Company.

As per the current provisions of the Companies act 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, independent directors are permitted to be appoint-

ed for a of 5 years without being liable to retire by rotation.

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal as independent directors under section 149 , 152 of the Act and 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

to hold office for 5 (Five) years.

Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal is not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in terms of section 164 of the Act and 

have given their consent to act as directors.

The company has also received declarations from Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal that he meet with the criteria of 

independence as prescribed both under sub section (6) of section 149 of the Act and under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In the opinion of the Board Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal fulfil the conditions for appointment as independent directors 

as specified in the Act and the Listing Agreement. Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal is independent of the management.

Copy of the draft letter for respective appointment of Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal as independent director setting out 

terms and conditions are available for inspection by members at the registered office of the company.

Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal is interested in the resolution set out respectively at item no. 4 of the notice with regard 

to his respective appointment.

Save and except above, none of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the company/their relatives are, in 

any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in these resolutions.

The Board commends the Special resolutions set out at item no. 4 of the notice for approval by the shareholders.

ITEM NO. 5

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda is a commerce graduate and having over 30 years of rich experience in successfully 

running the business of Granites and Paper business. He is a partner in Sunshine Granites. He is also the 

Director in the Sai Shakti Kraft Papers Private Limited. He has over all three decades of expertise in Business 

Management, Finance and Accounts of the Company
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Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda is appointed as independent director of the Company.

As per the current provisions of the Companies act 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, independent directors are permitted to be 

appointed for a of 5 years without being liable to retire by rotation.

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda as independent directors under section 149 , 152 of the Act and 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

to hold office for 5 (Five) years.

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda is not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in terms of section 164 of the Act 

and have given their consent to act as directors.

The company has also received declarations from Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda that he meet with the criteria of inde-

pendence as prescribed both under sub section (6) of section 149 of the Act and under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In the opinion of the Board Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda fulfil the conditions for appointment as independent directors 

as specified in the Act and the Listing Agreement. Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda is independent of the management.

Copy of the draft letters for respective appointments of Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda as independent directors setting 

out terms and conditions are available for inspection by members at the registered office of the company.

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda is interested in the resolution set out respectively at item no. 5 of the notice with regard 

to his respective appointment.

Save and except above, none of the Directors/ Key Managerial Personnel of the company/their relatives are, in 

any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in these resolutions.

The Board commends the Special resolution set out at item no. 5 of the notice for approval by the shareholders.

 

By Order of the Board of Directors

For ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED

Place: Bangalore             Siva Kiran Mavoori

Date: 14.08.2024                                     Company Secretary

Registered Office:            

Sy. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial Area, 

Bangalore Road, Katmachanahalli, 

Chintamani, Chikaballapur,

Karnataka -563125 

 

CIN: L20231KA2017PLC179929
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Additional information on directors recommended for appointment / reappointment as required under 

Regulation 36 of the LODR Regulations and applicable Secretarial Standards:

Name of Director

Director Identification 
Number

Date of Birth & Age

Nationality

Date of First 
Appointment

Qualification

Brief Profile and Nature 
of expertise in specific 
functional areas

Shyam Daga

00561803

13.02.1975 & 50 Years

Indian

14.06.2017

Commerce Graduate 
from St. Xavier’s, Calcut-
ta University

Mr. Shyam Daga is the 
Chairman and Managing 
Director of Archidply 
Decor Limited (ADL), with 
its manufacturing unit 
located in Chintamani, 
Karnataka. A commerce 
graduate from St. Xavi-
er’s College, University of 
Kolkata, he started his 
career with Archidply 
Industries Limited(AIL) in 
1996 and has been 
instrumental in expanding 
the AIL from a single 
manufacturing facility to 
three units. From 1996 to 
2005, he played a key 
role in managing The 
Mysore Chipboards Ltd. 
In 2006, he established 
AIL’s Greenfield project in 
Uttaranchal, and in 2007, 
he led AIL’s successful 
initial public offering 
(IPO). The following year, 
he set up a Greenfield 
manufacturing unit in 
Chintamani, Karnata-
ka.Having over  30 years 
of experience in manag-
ing the overall administra-
tion, operations Finance 
& Accounts in the wood 
panel industry

Neeraj Kumar Mittal

00900714

28.07.1974

Indian

11.02.2020

Commerce Graduate

Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal is 
a seasoned entrepreneur 
with over 30 years of 
expertise in business 
management, finance, 
and accounts. A com-
merce graduate, he has 
extensive experience in 
the plastics industry and 
is the Director of Plasmix 
Private Limited, a leading 
manufacturer of antifibril-
lant master batches, 
additive master batches, 
colour master batches, 
and engineering com-
pounds in South India for 
over 15 years. He also 
serves on the boards of 
M.G. Metals Private 
Limited, Micro Carbon-
ates Private Limited, and 
Icon Plast (India) Private 
Limited. His strategic 
leadership and financial 
acumen have contributed 
significantly to the growth 
of these enterprises. . He 
has over all 30 years of 
expertise in Business 
Management, Finance 
and Accounts of the 
Company. 

Dinesh Kumar Marda

03267281

09.07.1964

Indian

11.02.2020

Commerce Graduate

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda 
brings over 35 years of 
rich experience in 
successfully managing 
businesses in the granite 
and paper industries. A 
commerce graduate, he is 
a partner in Sunshine 
Granites and the Director 
of Sai Shakti Kraft Papers 
Private Limited. With 
more than three decades 
of expertise in business 
management, finance, 
and accounts, he has 
played a pivotal role in 
steering his ventures 
toward sustained growth 
and operational excel-
lence. He has over all 
three decades of exper-
tise in Business Manage-
ment, Finance and 
Accounts of the Company
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List of outside Director-
ship held excluding 
Alternate Directorship 
and Private Companies.

Terms and conditions of 
appointment

Chairman/ Member of 
the Committee of the 
Board of Directors of 
the Company

Last drawn remunera-
tion
details along with 
Remuneration
sought to be paid

Relationship with other
Directors and KMP

Details of listed compa-
nies from which the 
appointee has resigned 
during the last three 
financial years

Number of meetings of 
the Board attended

Inter-se relationship 
with other Directors and 
Key Managerial Person-
nel of the Company

No. of shares held:

a) Own

b) For other persons on  
 a beneficial basis

The Mysore Chipboards 
Limited
Archidply Industries 
Limited
Shree Shyam Tea Pvt Ltd

In terms of Section 152 
and other applicable 
provisions of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013, Mr. 
Shyam Daga, who retires 
by rotation, is proposed to 
be re-appointed as a 
Director of the Company, 
liable to retire by rotation.

Refer to Report on 
CORPORATE GOVER-
NANCE

Rs. 50 Lakhs Per annum, 
There is no change in 
remuneration.

Mr. Shyam Daga is 
brother of Mr. Rajiv Daga, 
Director of the Company.

Nil

Please refer Corporate 
Governance Report 
Section of the Annual 
Report.

None

171161

Nil

Nil

Re-appointment as an 
Independent Director for 
a second term of 5 
consecutive years 
effective from September 
28, 2025 to September 
27, 2030 (for further 
details refer the Notice 
and Explanatory State-
ment.

Refer to Report on 
CORPORATE GOVER-
NANCE

Mr.Neeraj Kumar Mittal is 
not related to any director 
and KMP of the 
Company.

Nil

Please refer Corporate 
Governance Report 
Section of the Annual 
Report.

None

Nil

Nil

Nil

Re-appointment as an 
Women Independent 
Director for a second term 
of 5 consecutive years 
effective from September 
28, 2025 to September 
27, 2030 (for further 
details refer the Notice 
and Explanatory State-
ment

Refer to Report on 
CORPORATE GOVER-
NANCE

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda 
is not related to any 
director and KMP of the 
Company.

Nil

Please refer Corporate 
Governance Report 
Section of the Annual 
Report.

None

Nil

Nil

*As per shareholding pattern submitted to Stock exchange for the period ended on March 31, 2025.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF

ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED

Your Directors are pleased to present the Eighth Annual Report together with the Audited Statement of Accounts 

for the year ended 31st March 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial results of the Company during the year under review are summarized as under: 

                                                                          (Rs. In Lakhs)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW:

The highlights of the Company’s standalone performance are as under:

• The Total Income of the Company during the year under review increased by 10.92% 

 from Rs.  4842.99 lakhs to Rs. 5372.04 lakhs.

• The Profit before Depreciation, Interest & Tax (PBDIT) decreased by 9.41% from 

 Rs. 461.70 Lakh in the previous year to Rs. 418.25 Lakh.

• There has been 82.61% decrease in the profit in the Company as compared to profit 

 in the previous year of Rs. 9.49 Lakh to profit of Rs. 1.65 lakhs in current financial 

 year.

DIVIDEND:

There being no sufficient profits during the year, keeping in view to further improve the capacity utilization and 

consolidate its existing facilities, the Board has considered prudent to conserve and retain the profit for further 

improvement. The Board regrets its inability to recommend any dividend.

Particulars

Revenue from Operations

Other Income

Total Income

Profit Before Financial expenses & Depreciation & Tax

Less: Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 

Less:      Finance Costs

Profit before tax

Taxation 

Profit after tax

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income net of taxes

Year ended 
31.03.25

5,248.15

123.89

5,372.04

418.25

184.58

221.74

11.93

6.28

5.65

(4.00)

1.65

Year ended 
31.03.24

4725.48

117.51

4842.99

461.70

175.29

207.63

78.78

75.92

2.86

6.63

9.49
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SHARE CAPITAL:

differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity during the year.

The Shares of the Company was listed of the stock exchanges viz. BSE & NSE.

FINANCE:

-

ues to focus on judicious management of its working capital, Receivables, inventories and other working capital 

parameters were kept under strict check through 

continuous monitoring.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

During the financial year under review, the company did not accept any deposits covered under chapter V of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 

Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

There were no Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the investments made by company is given in the notes to the financial 

statements.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the financial year, there has been no change in the business of the company or in the nature of business 

carried by the Company during the financial year under review.

MATERIAL CHANGE AND COMMITMENT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 

between the close of the year till the date of this report. There has been no change which affect the financial 

position of the Company.

As such there is no significant and material order by the regulator/court/tribunal/ impacting the going concern 

status and the Company operation in future.

CREDIT RATING 

There is no credit rating of the Company done during the financial year 2024-25. 
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INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its opera-

tions. The Company has in-house Internal Auditor. To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal 

Auditor function reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board & Managing Director.

The Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the Company, 

its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company. Based 

on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective areas and 

thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along with corrective 

actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO:

The particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, 

as required to be disclosed under the Act, are provided in Annexure “A” to this Report.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

During the year under review, your Company enjoyed cordial relationship with workers and employees at all 

levels.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITY

The Company is not liable for any CSR as per Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.

 

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSON:

Re-appointment of Independent Director:

During the year, the Board of Director’s, on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Commit-

tee (‘NRC’), in its meeting held on November 14, 2024 approved and recommended to the shareholders for their 

approval, the re-appointment of Ms. Akshatha Rai (DIN: 00652797) as Women Independent Director, Mr. . Kukke-

halli Raviraj Hegde (DIN: 08693808) of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second 

term of five (5) consecutive years February 11, 2025, to February 10, 2030. The Company received the approval 

of the members of the Company on February 24, 2025, by way of Postal Ballot, for the re-appointment of above 

Independent Directors of the Company.  

Director liable to Retire by Rotation 

Pursuant to Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read with the Articles of Association of the 

Company, one-third of the Directors, as are liable to retire by rotation, shall retire every year and, if eligible, may 

offer themselves for reappointment at every AGM. Accordingly, one of the Directors, other than an Independent 

Director, would be liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM. 

ANNUAL REPORT - 2024 - 25 

19



Mr. Shyam Daga (DIN: 00561803), Chairman cum Managing Director & CEO of the company, will retire by 

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

Pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors, 

considered and approved the re-appointment Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal (DIN: 00900714), and Mr. Dinesh Kumar 

Marda (DIN- 03267281), Independent Directors for the second term of 5 years  commencing from 28th Septem-

ber, 2025 to 27th September, 2030 subject to the approval of the members of the Company at the Annual general 

meeting.

Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed/ reappointed, the nature of their expertise in specific func-

tional areas and the names of the companies in which they hold the directorship and 

Chairmanship / Membership of Board Committees etc. are provided in the Notice to Members and report on 

Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report.

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or 

transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the 

purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committee of the Company.

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified as per provisions of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 

2013. The Directors of the Company have made necessary disclosures as required under various provisions of 

the Companies Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015. The Certificate of the CS in practice for the same is 

attached to the report as Annexure B.

All independent directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under 

section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per the requirement of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel Director’s Report to the Mem-

bers of the Company as on March 31, 2025 are Mr. Shyam Daga, Managing Director & CEO; Mr. Raju Ram 

Prajapat, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Siva Kiran Mavoori, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

Our corporate governance report for FY 2024-25 forms part of this Annual Report. The requisite certificate from 

the auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated 

under SEBI LODR is annexed to the corporate governance report.

BOARD EVALUATION 

The Company has laid down a process for evaluation of the Board and Committees of Board as also evaluation 

of the performance of each of the Directors. The evaluation is conducted and monitored by the Chairperson, Nom-

ination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) in consultation with the members of the committee. Each of the Direc-

tors are given a self-assessment Questionnaire, covering degree of fulfillment of their responsibilities, Board 

structure and composition, Responsibilities of Committee, effectiveness of the Board process, information and 

functioning, Board culture and dynamics, quality of relationship between the Board and Management etc. 
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The evaluation process inter alia considers attendance of Directors at Board and committee meetings, acquain-

tance with business, communicating inter se board members, effective participation, domain knowledge, compli-

ance with code of conduct, vision and strategy, benchmarks established by global peers, etc., which is incompli-

ance with applicable laws, regulations and guidelines. 

MEETINGS

The board met four times during the financial year, the details of which are given in the corporate governance 

report. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Compa-

nies Act, 2013.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME 

The details of the familiarization programme undertaken have been provided in the Corporate Governance 

Report.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Based on the framework of internal financial controls established and maintained by the Company, work 

performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and reviews performed by Management in concur-

rence with the Audit Committee, the Board  is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were 

adequate and effective during the financial year 2024-25

 In Compliance with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors to the best of their knowl-

edge and hereby confirm the following:

 (a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with 

proper explanation relating to material departures;

 (b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company 

at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities;

 (d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

 (e) The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and operating effectively.

 (f) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All Related Party Transactions that were entered during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and in 

the ordinary course of business and is in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing 

Regulations. There were no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company during the 

year that required shareholders’ approval under Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. None of the 

transactions entered with related parties falls under the scope of Section 188(1) of the Act. Details of transactions 

with related parties as required under Section 134(3) (h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure C in Form AOC-2 and forms part of this Report. 

There are no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with interest of the 

Company at large.

The Company has formulated and adopted a policy on dealing with related party transactions, in line with 

Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, which is available on the website of the Company at 

www.archidplydecor.com. As a part of the mandate under the Listing Regulations and the terms of reference, the 

Audit Committee undertakes quarterly review of related party transactions entered into by the Company with its 

related parties. 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company has no subsidiary company. Further, the Company does not have any joint venture or associate 

companies during the year or at any time after the closure of the year and till the date of the report.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2025 is available on the Company’s website and can be 

accessed at www.archidplydecor.com . 

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the 

Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity 

in the work place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through 

examples on the expected behavior from an employee in a given situation and the reporting structure.

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. 

VIGIL MECHANISM

Your Company has established a “Vigil Mechanism” for its employees and Directors, enabling them to report any 

concerns of unethical behavior, suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s ‘Code of Conduct’. To this effect, 

the Board has adopted a ‘Whistle Blower Policy’, which is overseen by the Audit Committee. The policy provides 

safeguards against victimization of the Whistle Blower. Employees and other stakeholders have direct access to 

the Chairperson of the Audit Committee for lodging concerns if any, for review. . The Whistle Blower Policy of your 

Company is posted on the website of the Company www.archidplydecor.com 
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the 6th Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2023, M/s GRV& PK & Co., Chartered Accountants 

(ICAI Firm Reg. No. 008099s), were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years 

up to the conclusion of 11th Annual General Meeting to be held in 2028. In terms of the provisions of Section 139 

(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. They have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of 

the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Auditors Report to the Shareholder does not contain any reservation, Qualification or adverse remark. The 

observation made in the Auditors Report read together with relevant notes thereon are self-explanatory and 

hence do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review, there were no material or serious instances of fraud falling within the purview of 

Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, by officers or employees reported by 

the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the course of the audit conducted and therefore no details are 

required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3)(ca) of the Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Board appointed Mr. Rajneesh Sharma Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the 

FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 is annexed herewith 

marked as Annexure D to this Report. 

The observation made in the Secretarial Auditors Report are self-explanatory and hence do not call for any further 

comments.

Further, pursuant to amended Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations, and subject to your approval being 

sought as the ensuing AGM CS Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary (C. P. No. 24210); (Peer 

reviewed certificate no. 5544/2024) has been appointed as a Secretarial Auditor to undertake the Secretarial Audit 

of your Company for the first term of five consecutive financial years from FY 2025-26 till FY 2029.30. CS 

Rajneesh Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary has confirmed that he is not disqualified to be appointed as a 

Secretarial Auditor and is eligible to hold office as Secretarial Auditor of your Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standard on Meetings of Board of 

Directors (SS-1), Revised Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2), and Secretarial Standard on Report 

of the Board of Directors (SS-4) respectively issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company has an elaborate Risk Management Framework, which is designed to enable risks to be identified, 

assessed and mitigated appropriately. On the basis of risk assessment criteria of the Company has been 

entrusted with the responsibility to assist the Board in 
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(A) Overseeing and approving the Company’s enterprise wide risk management framework; and

(b) Overseeing that all the risks that the organization faces such as financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, 

property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks have been identified and assessed and there is an 

adequate risk management infrastructure in place, capable of addressing those risks.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regula-

tions") is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014. Particulars of employees remuneration, as required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, forms a part of this report. Considering first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the 

Annual Report, excluding the said information, was sent to the members of the Company and others entitled 

thereto. The said information is available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during working 

hours up to the date of ensuing annual general meeting. Any member interested in obtaining such information 

may write to the Company Secretary in this regard.

 EQUAL OPPORTUNITY & PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASMENT AND COMPLIANCE OF THE PROVI-

SIONS RELATING TO THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961

The Company has always provided a congenial atmosphere for work to all employees that is free from discrimina-

tion of any kind. It has provided equal opportunities of employment to all without regard to the nationality, religion, 

caste, colour, language, marital status and sex. 

We have zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and have adopted a policy on prevention , prohibition 

and redressal of sexual harassment at Work place in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women 

at Workplace ( Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) ACT, 2013 and the Rules thereunder for prevention and 

Redressal of Complaints of sexual harassment at workplace. 

Following complaint related to sexual harassment during the calendar year are as follows:

(a) number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year - Nil 

(b) number of complaints disposed off during the year - Nil 

(c) number of cases pending for more than ninety days – Nil 

This is to certify and declare that the Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Maternity 

Benefit Act, 1961 and the rules made thereunder.
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COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Currently, the board has four Committees: the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 

and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The majority of the members of these committees are Indepen-

dent and non-executives.

A detailed note on the composition of the board and other committees is provided in the corporate governance 

report section of this annual report.

CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the CEO and CFO certification is attached with the Annual Report. The Man-

aging Director &CEO and the Chief Financial Officer also provide quarterly certification on financial results while 

placing the financial results before the Board in terms of the Listing Regulations.

LISTING FEES

The Equity shares of the Company are listed on the Stock exchange i.e. BSE & NSE. The annual listing fees has 

been paid to the Stock exchange.

SHARE REGISTRAR & TRANSFER AGENT (R&T)

M/s. KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly KFin Technologies Private Limited) is the R&T Agent of the Company. 

Their contact details are mentioned in the Report on Corporate Governance.

COST RECORDS 

Considering the goods manufactured and services rendered by the Company, the Central Government has not 

prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

hence, there was no Cost Auditor appointed by the Company during the year under review.

TRANSFER OF SHARES 

As notified under Regulation 40(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

except in case of transmission or transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not 

be processed unless the securities are held in the dematerialised form with a depository.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following matters as there were no 

transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise as per Section 43(a)(ii) of 

 the Companies Act, 2013;

2. The Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by 

 employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees;
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3. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or 

 commission from any of its subsidiaries;

4. No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board;

5. Issue of Shares including Sweat Equity Shares to the employees of the Company under any scheme as 

 per provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act,2013;

6. No instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly by employees 

 under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture as on the date of this Report.

8. Disclosure of reason for difference between valuation done at the time of taking loan from bank and at the 

 Time of one time settlement. There was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial 

 Institution.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation 

received from the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members during 

the year under review. The Boards of Directors also wish to place on record its deep sense of appreciation for the 

committed services by the Company’s executives, staff and workers.

                                                                 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

                                                                                       Shyam Daga      

                                                                            (Chairman) 

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 13th August, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A”TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

UNDER THE RULE 8 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS ) RULE,2014.

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company recognizes the critical importance of energy conservation and its impact on climate change. We 

remain committed to efficient utilization of energy resources across our operations.

- Energy conservation measures are undertaken through optimal production techniques, improved equipment 

configurations, and efficient operation of air conditioning systems.

- The Company has been actively installing high-efficiency equipment and adopting energy management practic-

es such as adjusting operating hours and thermostat settings.

- Offices consistently follow energy-saving practices, including the use of energy-efficient lighting and switching 

off lights, computers, and air conditioners when not in use.

- The Company continues to monitor and manage energy costs, particularly in line with expansion of operations.

B. Research and Development (R & D)

• Specific areas of R & D 

The Company has undertaken in-house R&D aimed at developing environmentally sustainable products and 

processes. Key initiatives include:

- Enhancing product quality and optimizing processes for cost efficiency.

- Designing proprietary adhesive resin plants and glue formulations to reduce formaldehyde emissions.

• Benefit derived as a result of the above R & D:

- Reduction in production costs.

- Development of eco-friendly processes resulting in lower effluent generation and reduced emissions..

• Future Plan of action:

The Company intends to intensify its R&D efforts with focus on cost reduction, quality improvement, and minimiz-

ing environmental impact.

• Expenditure on R & D

No specific capital expenditure has been earmarked for R&D. However, continuous investments are made in 

process optimization and product quality improvements, though not separately classified under R&D.

TECHNOLOGY,ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION.

• Efforts in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.

The Company has absorbed technological knowledge from affiliated companies, internal data, and published 

materials. This knowledge has been effectively adapted to our infrastructure, enabling improvements in manufac-

turing processes, pollution control, and effluent management.
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• Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts.

 - Rationalization of processes.

 - Improvement in product quality.

 - Enhancement in environmentally friendly practices.

• Imported technology

There is no imported technology during the year

C. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo

Earnings: on account of Export of Goods nil

lakhs

                                                                    For and on behalf of the Board of Archidply Decor Limited

 

            Shyam Daga

                                                                                       (Chairman)

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 13th August ,2025
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Annexure B

Certificate of Non Disqualification of Directors [Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C 

Clause (10)(i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Require-

ments) Regulations, 2015] 

To 

The Members, 

ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED

SY. NO.19, KSSIDC INDUSTRIAL AREA, BANGALORE ROAD, KATMACHANAHALLI, CHINTAMANI, CHIK-

ABALLAPUR, KARNATAKA -563125

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

Archidply Décor Limited having CIN L20231KA2017PLC179929, having its registered office at SY. No.19, 

KSSIDC Industrial Area, Bangalore Road, Katmachanahalli, Chintamani, Chikaballapur, Karnataka -563125 

(herein after referred to as ‘the company’) produced before us by the company for the purpose of issuing this 

certificate in accordance with regulation 34(3) read with schedule 5 para C sub clause (i) of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015. 

In our opinion and best of our belief, information and according to the verification (Including Director Identification 

Number(DIN) status of the respective directors at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and written 

representation made by the respective directors, we hereby certify that none of the directors on the board of the 

company as stated below for the financial year ending on 31st march 2025 have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or continuing as the director of the company by the securities and Exchange Board of India, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory authority. 

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 

   in Company

1 Shyam Daga 00561803 14.06.2017

2 Rajiv Daga 01412917 14.06.2017

3 Kukkehalli Raviraj Hegde 08693808 11.02.2020

4 Akshatha Rai 06512797 11.02.2020

5 Neeraj Kumar Mittal 00900714 28.09.2020

6 Dinesh Kumar Marda 03267281 28.09.2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity as the director of the board is the responsibility of the man-

agement of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification and representation 

made by the respective directors. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 

COMPANY SECRETARIES

(RAJNEESH SHARMA)

Proprietor

FCS: 5549; CP No:24210

PR No. 5544/2024

UDIN: F005549G001122192

Place : Udaipur

Date: August 30,2025
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ANNEXURE “C”TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form No. AOC-2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties 

referred to in sub-Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transac-

tions under third proviso thereto:

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 

Archidply Decor Limited (the Company) has not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with its related 

parties which are not in ordinary course of business or at arm’s length during the financial year 2024-25.

a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable 

b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable 

c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable 

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Not Applicable 

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable

f. Date(s) of approval by the Board: Not Applicable 

g. Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable 

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to 

 Section 188: Not Applicable.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

No advance amount paid for the aforesaid transactions

   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

                                                                                       Shyam Daga      

                                                                        (Chairman)   

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 13th August, 2025

Name of the 
Related Party

Archidply 
Industries 
Limited  (AIL)

Archidply 
Industries 
Limited  (AIL)

Archidply 
Industries 
Limited  (AIL)

Assam Timber 
Products Private 
Limited

The Mysore 
Chipboards 
Limited

Mrs. Arpita Daga

Nature of 
Transaction

Corporate 
Guarantee Fees 
Paid

Purchase of 
Goods

Sale of Goods

Rent Paid

Purchase of 
Goods

Duration of 
contract

Date of Board 
Approval

Value of Trans-
action approval 
given

During the 
Current 
Financial Year

Rs. 0.25 lakhs 

Rs.0.38 lakhs

Rs. 1.02 lakhs

Rs.1.20 lakhs 

Rs. 70.05 Lakhs

Rs. 0.08 lakhs
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Annexure - D

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED: 31.03.2025.

To,

The Members, 

ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED

SY. NO.19, KSSIDC INDUSTRIAL AREA, BANGALORE ROAD, KATMACHANAHALLI, CHINTAMANI, 

CHIKABALLAPUR, KARNATAKA -563125

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED (CIN: : L20231KA2017PLC179929 ) (hereinafter 

called the company) for the year ended March 31, 2025. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provid-

ed us with a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 

opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, to the extent the informa-

tion provided by the Company, its officers, RTA, agents and authorized representatives, electronic records avail-

able on the official portal of the ministry of corporate affairs www.mca.gov.in, portal of the stock exchanges, repre-

sentation made by the management,  I hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the financial 

year ended on March 31, 2025 (the audit period) generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company during the audit period according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent 

 of Foreign Direct Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings: There 

 were no FEMA provisions applicable during the Audit period.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

 Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):-

 a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

  Regulations, 2011;

 b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

 c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

  Regulations, 2009 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

 d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

  2008 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

 e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

  Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act and dealing with client;
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 f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not 

  Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998(Not 

  Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

 h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

  Regulations, 2015.;

 i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018.

 vi. Other than fiscal, labour and environmental laws which are generally applicable to all 

  manufacturing companies the following laws / acts are also inter alia, applicable to the Company:

 a. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

 b. Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution), Act, 1974

 c. The Legal Metrology Act, 2009

 d. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution), Act, 1981

The management of the company represented us that fiscal, labour, environmental laws and other statutes which 

are applicable to this type of company, are complied with.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

 a. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meetings of the 

  Board of Directors and General Meeting.

 b. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015 for the year ended 31st March 

  2025 with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 

  During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

  Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I have not examined compliance by the Company with:

 a. Applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, since the same have been subject to 

  review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

I further report that :

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Ex-

ecutive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 

place, if any during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were 

unanimous, and no dissenting views have been recorded.

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period:

There was no other event / action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above 

referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part 

of this report.

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 

COMPANY SECRETARIES

(RAJNEESH SHARMA)

Proprietor

FCS: 5549; CP No: 24210        Place :Udaipur

UDIN: F005549G001122258  Date: 30th August , 2025

PR No. 5544/2024
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ANNEXURE – A

(To the Secretarial Audit Report)

To

The Members,

ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED

SY. NO.19, KSSIDC INDUSTRIAL AREA, BANGALORE ROAD, KATMACHANAHALLI, CHINTAMANI, 

CHIKABALLAPUR, KARNATAKA -563125

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsi

 bility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate, to obtain reasonable assurance 

 about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis 

 to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 

 practices, I followed, provide are as on able basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and books of accounts of 

 the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 

 and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

 responsibility of the Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test 

 basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 

 efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 

COMPANY SECRETARIES

 (RAJNEESH SHARMA)

Proprietor

FCS: 5549; CP No: 24210

UDIN: F005549G001122258

PR No. 5544/2024

Place :Udaipur

Date: 30th August , 2025
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ANNEXURES “ F” TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars Pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appoint-

ment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 made thereunder:

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 

 Company for the Financial year :

 Executive Director Ratio to Median Remuneration

 Mr. Shyam Daga 18.00

(ii) Percentage increase in the remuneration of the Directors, Managing Director& & CEO , CFO, and 

 Company Secretary in the Financial Year:

 Directors, Managing Director& CFO, Joint Managing  % increase in the remuneration

 Director & CEO and Company Secretary   in the Financial year

 Mr. Shyam Daga, Managing Director & CEO Nil

 Mr. Siva Kiran Mavoori, Company Secretary Nil

 Mr. Raju Ram Prajapat, CFO (13.97%)

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 5 %.

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company: 50

(v) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

 personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 

 remuneration and justification thereof

The average increase in salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in 2024-25 was 5%. Percentage 

increase in the managerial remuneration for the year was nil.

(vi) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors:

 No directors have been paid any variable remuneration.

(vii) The Company hereby affirm that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.

(viii) There are no employees of the Company drawing the salary more than the prescribed limit under  the 

 Rule 5(2) & 5(3)of the Companies ( Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules ,2014 

                                                         For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

                                                                                       Shyam Daga                                                                                  

(Chairman)  

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 13th August, 2025
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER REGULATION 33 OF

SEBI (LODR) REGULATION 2015.

The Board of Directors

M/s. Archidply Decor Limited

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Archidply Decor Limited for the 

financial year 2024-25 and certify that:

a) These statements to the best of our knowledge and belief:

 I. Do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material facts or contain statements  

  that might be misleading:

 II.  Present a true and fair view of the Company‘s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

  accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b)  To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Directors 

 and Senior Management Personnel during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of 

 the Company’s Code of Conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

 and have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company for such 

 reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies, if any, in the 

 design or operation of such internal controls, of which we are aware of and the steps taken and/or 

 proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We have also indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee.

 (i) Significant changes in Internal Controls with respect to financial reporting during the year.

 (ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the Year and these have been disclosed in the 

  notes to the financial statements.

e) To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no instances of significant fraud involving either the 

 management or employees having a significant role in the Company’s internal control systems with 

 respect to financial reporting.

Shyam Daga        Raju Ram Prajapat

(Managing Director & CEO)      (CFO)

Place : Bengaluru

Date : August 13, 2025
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[Pursuant to Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 “Listing Regulations”]

The detailed report on Corporate Governance for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, as per regulation 34(3) 

read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is set out 

below:

Company's philosophy on Code of Governance

The Company upholds and practices the principles of Corporate Governance, emphasizing fairness, 

transparency, integrity, honesty, and accountability across all business practices and transactions. We are 

dedicated to maintaining high standards of governance by ensuring timely and adequate disclosures, implement-

ing transparent and sound accounting policies, and fostering a strong and independent Board, all with the goal of 

maximizing shareholder value.

Board of Directors:  

The Board of Director comprises of member from diversified fields and having varied skills, vast experience and 

knowledge. The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) is at the core of our corporate governance practice and oversees 

how the Management serves and protects the long-term interests of all our stakeholders. We believe that an 

active, well-informed and independent Board is necessary to ensure the highest standards of corporate gover-

nances.

Board Composition & Categories.

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of an optimum combination of executive and non-executive 

directors. The Board of directors comprises 6 Directors out of which 5 Directors are Non-executive Directors as 

on 31.03.2025. The Company has an Executive Chairman and not less than half of the total strength of the Board 

comprises of independent directors. The Company has three Independent Directors. None of the Directors on the 

Company’s Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees across all 

the Companies in which he is a Director as on 31.03.2025. All the Directors have made necessary disclosures 

regarding committee positions occupied by them in other Companies. 

There is no pecuniary relationship or transaction of the non-executive directors with the Company. During the year 

under review, none of the Independent Directors on the Board of the Company had resigned.

During the year, 4 Board Meetings were held on 30-05-2024, 14-08-2024, 14-11-2024 and 14-02-2025 .There has 

not been a time gap in excess of four months between any two meetings of the Board of Directors

The requisite information as enumerated as per the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 

Regulation 2015 is made available to the Board of Directors for discussion and consideration at Board Meetings. 

The composition of the Board, attendance at Board Meetings (BM) held during the financial year (FY) under 

review and at last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and number of directorships and Memberships/ Chairmanships 

in other  Companies are given below:
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None of the Non- Executive Directors except Mr. Rajiv Daga (161635 shares in the Company) hold any shares in 

the Company as at 31st March, 2025.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third 

Directors of the Company, liable to retire by rotation retires at every Annual General Meeting. In the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting   Mr.Shyam Daga is liable to retire by rotation. Information as required under SEBI 

(LODR) Regulation 2015 on director’s appointed/reappointed at this Annual General Meeting is annexed to the 

Notice of the Annual General Meeting.

The number of other listed entity’s Board(s) or Board Committees where Directors are member/chairperson and 

name of other Listed Companies along with Category of Directorship:

The number of other listed entity’s Board(s) or Board Committees in which the Directors are member/ chairperson 

and name of other Listed Companies along with Category of Directorship as on March 31, 2025 are as follows:

Name of the Director

(Designation)

Mr. Mr. Shyam Daga

(Executive Chairman & 

Managing Director )

Mr. Rajiv Daga

(Non- Executive Director)

Mr. Kukkehalli Raviraj 

Hegde (Director)

Mrs. Mrs. Akshatha Rai 

(Director)

Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal 

(Director)

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda

(Director) 

Category

Promoter

Promoter

Independent

Independent

Independent

Independent

FY 2024-25 Attendance at

BM

4

1

4

4

1

3

Last AGM

YES

YES

YES

YES

No

No
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* Membership/Chairmanship of Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration committee and Stakeholders’ 

Relationship Committee has only been considered

The number of Directorships, Committee Membership(s) / Chairmanship(s) of all Directors is within respective 

limits prescribed under the Act and Listing Regulations.

Performance evaluation of Board & Directors: 

The Board is responsible for undertaking a formal annual evaluation of its own performance, that of its Commit-

tees and of individual Directors as per Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with a view to review their functioning and effective-

ness and also for identifying possible paths for improvement. During the year, the Board in concurrence with Nom-

ination and Remuneration Committee carried out a performance evaluation of itself, its Committees, and each of 

the executive/ non-executive/ independent directors through questionnaire. The meeting for evaluation of  inde-

pendent Directors was held on 14.02.2025. The meeting of the independent Directors for evaluating the Board 

and Chairman performance was also held on 14.02.2025.

 The Independent directors shall be evaluated on various performance indicators including aspects relating to:

• Integrity and maintenance of confidentiality.

• Commitment and participation at the Board & Committee

• Effective deployment of knowledge and expertise

• Exercise of objective independent judgement in the best interest of Company

Name of the Director

(Designation)

Mr. Mr. Shyam Daga 

(Executive Chairman & 

Managing Director) 

Mr. Rajiv Daga

(Non- Executive Director)

Mr. Kukkehalli Raviraj 

Hegdem(Director)

Mrs. Akshatha Rai (Direc-

tor)

Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal 

(Director)

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda 

(Director) 

No. of outside

directorship held

 Public   Private

 

 2 1

 2 2

 0 0

 0 1

 0 3

 0 1

Name of other Listed

Companies and Category 

of Directorship

Archidply Industries 

Limited : Non- Executive 

Director

Archidply Industries 

Limited : Executive Director

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

    

No. of outside 

committees*

(in public limited 

companies

 Member      Chairman

 

 0 0

 2 0

 0 0

    

    

 0 0  

    

 

 0 0 

      0 0  
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• Interpersonal relationships with other directors and management

 The board and committee will also be evaluated on the following parameters:

• Size, structure and expertise of the Board.

• Review of strategies, risk assessment, robust policies and procedures by Board.

• Oversight of the financial reporting process & monitoring company’s internal control system. Quality of 

 agenda, conduct of meeting, procedures and process followed for effective discharge of functions.

• Effective discharge of functions and duties by Committee as per terms of reference. Appropriateness     

 and timeliness of the updates given on regulatory developments.

• Board’s engagement with Senior Management team.

• The Chairperson had an individual discussion with each director based on the peer analysis.

 Details of Familiarisation programme to Independent Directors: 

  

Regulation 25(7) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Schedule IV 

of the Companies Act, 2013 mandates the Company to familiarize the Independent Directors with the Company 

by conducting training programmes. During the year, the Board members were regularly apprised with the over-

view of the Company and its operations by the Senior Management team. The Board was also regularly 

appraised of all regulatory and policy changes. 

For FY 2024-25, the Annual Business Plan meeting was held, which included a session with the management 

team, wherein, the Directors were walked through the market of different Business products, the customers, the 

future prospects, emerging technologies etc.

The familiarisation policy including details of familiarisation programmes attended by independent directors 

during the year ended March 31, 2025 is posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.archidplydecor.com

Confirmation that in the opinion of the Board of Directors the Independent Directors of the

Company fulfils the conditions specified in the SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of

the management of the Company:

Based on the declaration of independency pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Act, and Listing Regulations, 

received from each of the Independent Directors of the Company and placed before the Board of Directors in their 

meeting held on May 29,2025, it is confirmed by the Board of directors that Mr. Kukkehalli Raviraj Hegde, Mrs. 

Akshatha Rai (Director),Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda Independent Directors of the Com-

pany fulfils the conditions specified in SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of the management.

Board Membership Criteria and list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified in the context of the business:

In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, the Board has identified the following skills/expertise/competen-

cies of the Directors as given below:
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Skills and its description

Experience of crafting Business 
Strategies
Experience in developing 
long-term strategies to grow 
consumer/dealer business,
consistently, profitably, competi-
tively and in a sustainable 
manner in diverse
business environments and 
changing economic conditions

Finance and Accounting Experi-
ence:
Leadership experience in 
handling financial management 
of a lorganization along with an 
understanding of accounting and 
financial statements

Leadership experience of 
running  enterprise:
Experience in leading well-gov-
erned organisations, with an 
understanding of organisational 
systems and processes complex 
business and regulatory environ-
ment, strategic planning and risk 
management, understanding of 
emerging local and global trends 
and management of accountabil-
ity and performance

HR/ people
Orientation:
 Understanding of HR Policies
) Managing HR activities, talent
development and strengthening 
the people function

Understanding of Consumer and 
Customer Insights in diverse
environments and conditions –
Experience of having managed 
organisations with consum-
er/dealers
interface in diverse business 
environments and economic 
conditions which helps in lever-
aging consumer/dealers insights 
for business benefits.

Rajiv Daga

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Shyam Daga

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Akshata Rai

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

K . R.  

Hegde

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

Neeraj K 

Mittal

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Dinesh K 

Marda 

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes
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Disclosures of relationships between Directors inter-se:

 Name of the Director Category Relationship with Directors

 (Designation) 

 Mr. Mr. Shyam Daga Promoter Mr. Rajiv Daga ( Brother)

 (Executive Chairman & 

 Managing Director ) 

 Mr. Rajiv Daga Promoter Mr. Shyam Daga ( Brother)

 (Non- Executive Director) 

 Mr. Kukkehalli Raviraj Hegde Independent None

 (Director) 

 

 Mrs. Mrs. Akshatha Rai  Independent None

 (Director) 

 

 Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal  Independent None

 (Director) 

 

 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda Independent None

 (Director)  

Composition of Board Committee

The Board has constituted various Committees to support the Board in discharging its responsibilities. There are 

three Committees constituted by the Board 

• Audit Committee

• Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

• Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Company’s guidelines relating to Board meetings are applicable to Committee meetings as far as 

practicable.

Each Committee has the authority to engage outside experts, advisors and counsels to the extent it considers 

appropriate to assist in its functions. Senior officers/ functional heads of Company are invited to present various 

details called for by the Committee in its meeting. Minutes of proceedings of Committee meetings are circulated 

to the Directors and placed before Board meetings for noting. The recommendations of the Committees are 

submitted to the Board for approval.
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Audit Committee

Terms of Reference:

(i) Brief description of terms of reference:

The powers, role and terms of reference of the audit Committee are in line with the provisions of Section 177 of 

the Companies Act 2013, and regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) 2015. 

The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision of the Management’s 

financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures with the highest levels of transparency, 

integrity and quality of financial reporting. The Committee oversees the work carried out in the financial reporting 

process by the Management, the internal auditors and the independent auditors and notes the processes and 

safeguards employed by each of them.

The Committee also reviews the functioning of whistle blower & Vigil mechanism, adequacy and effectiveness of 

internal audit function, risk management and control systems and results of operation.

Business Risk Evaluation and Management

The overview of the risk management policy is also done by the Audit Committee.

Business Risk Evaluation and Management is an ongoing process within the Organization. The Company has a 

robust risk management framework to identify, monitor and minimize risks as also identify business opportunities.

The objectives and scope of the Audit Committee regarding the Risk Management broadly comprise of;

1.   Oversight of risk management performed by the executive management;

2.   Reviewing the BRM policy and framework in line with local legal requirements and SEBI guidelines;

3.  Reviewing risks and evaluate treatment including initiating mitigation actions and ownership as per a pre-de-

fined cycle;

4.  Defining framework for identification, assessment, monitoring, and mitigation and reporting of risks.

5.  Within its overall scope as aforesaid, the Committee shall review risks trends, exposure, and potential impact 

analysis and mitigation plan.

WHISTLE-BLOWER POLICY

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for 

reporting illegal or unethical behaviour. The Company has a Vigil Mechanism

And Whistle-blower policy under which the employees are free to report violations of applicable laws and regula-

tions and the Code of Conduct. The reportable matters may be disclosed to the Ethics and Compliance Task 

Force which operates under the supervision of the Audit Committee. Employees may also report to the Chairman 

of the Audit Committee. During the year under review, no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee.

PROHIBITION OF INSIDER TRADING

With a view to regulate trading in securities by the directors and designated employees, the Company has adopt-

ed a Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading.
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Audit Committee is also responsible for giving the guidance & directions under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trad-

ing) Regulations, 2015

•  Meeting, Composition, designation, Category and Attendance thereof:

The Committee met 4 times during the FY 2024-25 on 30.05.2024, 14-08-2024, 14-11-2024and 14.02.2025, the 

attendance and Composition of meetings is as under:

S. No Name of Director Designation Category No. of meetings

    attended

1 Mr. K.R. Hegde Chairman Non Executive, 4  

  Independent

2 Mrs. Akshatha Rai Member Non Executive,  4  

  Independent

3 Mr. Shyam Daga Member Executive, 4  

  Promote

4. Mr. H. Ganpatlal Kawad Auditor Auditor 4 

5. Mr. Siva Kiran Mavoori Secretary to the  Company  4 

  Committee Secretary 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

(i) Brief description of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are in line with the provisions of section 178 
of the Companies Act and Regulation 19 SEBI (LODR) 2015.

The purpose of the Committee is to oversee the nomination process for top-level management positions and 
review executive remuneration structure. The Committee identifies, screens and reviews individuals qualified to 
serve as executive directors, non-executive directors and independent directors consistent with criteria approved 
by the Board and recommends, for approval by the Board, nominees for election at the AGM.

•  Meeting, Composition, designation, Category and Attendance thereof:

During the year 2024-25,  meeting of the Committee was held on 14-11-2024 & 14.02.2025. The Composition and 
other details of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company are as follows:

The Committee comprises of three independent Directors:

S. No Name of Director Designation Category No. of meetings  
    attended
1 Mrs. Akshatha Rai Chairman Non Executive,  2
   Independent 
2 Mr. K.R. Hegde Member Non Executive,  2
   Independent 
3 Mr. Rajiv  Daga Member Non Executive,  2
   Non-Independent
4 Mr. Siva Kiran Mavoori Secretary to the Company Secretary 2
  Committee
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•  Details of Remuneration paid to Directors:

Payment to Non-Executive Directors 
 
Non-executive Directors are paid the sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings 

                      (In Rs.)
 Name of Directors Sitting fees for Board Meeting Sitting fees for Committee Meeting
 Mrs. Akshatha Rai 60000 50000
 Mr. K.R. Hegde  60000 50000
 Mr. Rajiv  Daga  Nil  Nil
 Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal Nil 
 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda 30000 

Pecuniary relations or transactions of the Non-Executive Directors

 There were no pecuniary relationship or transactions of non-executive directors vis- a-vis the Company. 

Payment to Executive Directors

During the year, the  remuneration was paid to the Executive Director details as under :

Mr. Shyam Daga :Rs.50.00 lakhs
i. No commission is payable to the Executive Directors.
ii. No sitting fee is paid to Executive Directors for attending the meeting of Board of Directors of the 
 Company or committees thereof.
iii. There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees.

The details of shares held by the Executive and Non-Executive Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 
are as follows:
 Name of the Director Category Shares held 
 (Designation) 
 Mr. Shyam Daga
 (Executive Chairman &  Promoter 171161
 Managing Director )
 Mr. Rajiv Daga
 (Non- Executive Director) Promoter 161635
 Mr. Kukkehalli Raviraj Hegde
 (Director)  Independent 0
 Mrs. Akshatha Rai (Director) Independent 0
 Mr. Neeraj Kumar Mittal 
 (Director)  Independent 0
 Mr. Dinesh Kumar Marda
 (Director)   Independent 0

POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted a Charter which, inter alia, deals with the manner of 
selection of Board of Directors and CEO & Managing Director and their remuneration. This Policy is accordingly 
derived from the said Charter.
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CRITERIA OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Considering the requirement of skill sets on the Board, eminent people having an independent standing in their 

respective field/profession, and who can effectively contribute to the Company’s business and policy decisions 

are considered by the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, for appointment, as Inde-

pendent Director on the Board. The Committee, inter alia, considers qualification, positive attributes, area of 

expertise and number of Directorships and Memberships held in various committees of other companies by such 

persons in accordance with the Company’s Policy for Selection of Directors and determining Directors’ indepen-

dence. The Board considers the Committee’s recommendation, and takes appropriate decision. Every Indepen-

dent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he participates as a Director and thereafter at the first 

meeting of the Board in every financial year, gives a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence as 

provided under law.

Remuneration

The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, reimbursement of 

expenses for participation in the Board meetings.

A Non-Executive Director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board attended by him, 

of such sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors within the overall limits prescribed under the Compa-

nies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel )Rules, 2014

REMUNERATION OF CHAIRPERSON

The N&RC recommends the remuneration of the Executive Chairperson to the Board which considered and 

approved by the Board subject to Shareholders’ and regulatory approvals. The N&RC, while recommending the 

remuneration of the Chairperson considers the following factors:

(a) Function, Role and Responsibilities of the Chairperson,

(b) Comparison with the peer Companies,

(c) Industry benchmarking,

(d) Regulatory guidelines as applicable, etc.

The remuneration payable to the Chairperson is subject to prior approval of the Board. Therefore, the remunera-

tion or any revision in remuneration of the Chairperson is payable only after receipt of the approval from Board 

and Shareholder approval.

CEO & Managing Director - Criteria for selection / appointment

For the purpose of selection of the CEO  & MD, the N&R Committee shall identify persons of integrity who 

possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership qualities required for the position and shall take into 

consideration recommendation, if any, received from any member of the Board.

The Committee will also ensure that the incumbent fulfills such other criteria with regard to age and other qualifi-

cations as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable laws.

Remuneration for the CEO & Managing Director

At   the   time   of   appointment   or re-appointment, the CEO & Managing Director shall be paid such remuneration 

as may be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the N&R Committee and the Board of Direc-

tors) and the CEO & Managing Director within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General Meeting.
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The remuneration of the CEO & Managing Director comprises only of fixed   component. The fixed component 

comprises salary, allowances, perquisites, amenities and retrial benefits.

Remuneration Policy for the Senior Management Employees.

In determining the remuneration of the Senior Management Employees (i.e. KMPs and Executive Committee 

Members) the N&R Committee shall ensure the relation- ship of remuneration and performance benchmark is 

clear.

The Managing Director will carry out the individual performance review based on the standard appraisal matrix 

and shall take into account the appraisal score card and other factors mentioned herein-above, whilst recom-

mending the annual increment and performance incentive to the N&R Committee for its review and approval.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct ('the Code') applicable to the Directors and 

employees. The Code is applicable to Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors to such extent as 

may be applicable to them depending on their roles and responsibilities. The Code gives guidance and support 

needed for ethical conduct of business and compliance of law. The Code reflects the values of the Company viz. 

Customer Value, Ownership Mind-set, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence.

A declaration signed by the Company’s Chairman is published in this Report.

COMPLIANCE

The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meeting(s), is respon-

sible for and is required to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and

regulations, including the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules issued thereunder, as applicable and Secretarial 

Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

MD & CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company give Quarterly and annual certification on 

financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations. The 

Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer also give quarterly certification on financial results while placing 

the financial results before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of the Listing Regulations. The annual certifi-

cate given by the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer is published in this Report.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

Archidply has not issue employee Stock Option during F.Y 2024-25

Stakeholder Relationship Committee: 

(i) Brief description of terms of reference:

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are in line with the provisions of section 178 

of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 20 SEBI (LODR) 2015.

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is primarily responsible for redressal of shareholders’ / investors’ / 

security holders’ grievances including complaints related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of declared dividends, 

annual reports etc. The Committee’s terms of reference also include allotment of equity shares to option grantees 

under the prevailing ESOP Scheme of the Company.
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• Meeting, Composition, designation, Category and Attendance thereof:

The Committee met four times during the FY 2024-25 on 30.05.2024, 14-08-2024, 14-11-2024  and 14.02.2025. 

The attendance and Composition of meetings is as under:

S. No Name of Director Designation Category No. of meetings

    attended

1 Mr. K.R. Hegde Chairman Non Executive, Independent 4

2 Mrs. Akshatha Rai Member Non Executive, Independent 4

3 Mr. Shyam Daga Member Executive, Promoter 4

4. Mr. Siva Kiran Mavoori Secretary 

Mr. Siva Kiran Mavoori, Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer of the Company. 

The shares of the Company are being compulsorily traded in dematerialized form. Shares in physical form, 

received for transfer/dematerialization, were transferred/dematerialized within a period of 21 days from the date 

of lodgement of valid share transfer deed along with share certificate. These requests are processed through the 

Company’s Registrar and share transfer Agent i.e. Kfin Technologies P Limited.

The Company has taken various steps to ensure that the shareholders- related matters are given due priority and 

the matters/issues raised are resolved at the earliest.

During the year 2024-25- no Complaints (Received & Resolved - no pending complaints)

General Body Meetings 

i. Details of the location and time of the last three AGM's(Annual General meeting) held:

 Year Location Date Time

 2024 Sy. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial Area,  30.09.2024 12:30 P.M.

  Bangalore road, Katmachanahalli, 

  Chintamani, Chikaballapur, Karnataka -563125 

 2023 Plot no. 7, Sector-9, IIE SIDCUL Pantnagar,  30.09.2023 12.30 P.M.

  Rudrapur, Udham Singh Nagar, Uttrakhand -263153  

 2022 Plot no. 7, Sector-9, IIE SIDCUL Pantnagar,  30.09.2022 12.30 P.M.

  Rudrapur, Udham Singh Nagar, Uttrakhand -263153 

The following Special Resolution was taken up in the last three Annual General Meetings.

• Approval of related party transaction

• Revision in the Salary of Executive Chairman, CEO, and Managing Director

• Appointment of Executive Chairman, CEO, and Managing Director 

• Appointment of Independent Directors

• Shifting Of Registered Office From The State Of Uttarakhand To The State Of  Karnataka

• Authorise board to borrow.

• Increase the limits for Loan/Guarantee / Security / Investments

• Loan to directors, Etc
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There is no immediate proposal for passing any special resolution through Postal Ballot.

Disclosures

 None of the transactions with any of the related party was in conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 

 The details of related party transactions are given in the Notes to Accounts forming part of the Annual 

 Accounts.

No strictures / penalties have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or the SEBI or any 

 statutory authority on any matters related to capital markets during the last three years

 The Company has complied with the requirements of the stock exchange or SEBI on matters related to 

 Capital Market as applicable.

 The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015.

Means of Communication

In order to attain maximum shareholders – reach, the quarterly and half yearly financials results of the Company 

shall be published in leading newspapers (English & Hindi language) the financial results are simultaneously 

posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.archidplydecor.com

To facilitate prompt correspondence with investors/shareholders relating to their queries and grievances, the 

Company has a dedicated email-id viz, bangalore@archidply.com

Website: 

The Company’s website (www.archidplydecor.com) is a comprehensive reference on Company’s vision, mission, 

products, investor relation, and contact details. In compliance with Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, a 

separate section under “Investor Relations” on the Company’s website gives all required information under the 

Listing Regulations.

General Shareholder Information

1.  Date, Time and Venue of 8th Annual General Meeting:

 Year Location Date Time

 2025 Sy. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial Area,  30th September , 2025 12:30 PM

  Bangalore Road, Katmachanahalli, 

  Chintamani, Chikaballapur, Karnataka -563125

2.  Extra Ordinary General Meeting

During the Financial Year 2024-25, no Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held.

3. Postal Ballot:

During the FY 2024-25 and as on the date of this Report, the Company passed the following special resolutions 

through e-voting conducted by way of Postal Ballot notice dated 14.11.2024.

a. To approve the re-appointment of Mr. . Kukkehalli Raviraj Hegde (DIN: 08693808) as an Independent Director 

of the Company:
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S. No. Special Resolution Passed Vote casted in favour Vote casted against

  Number of % of  Number of % of 

  votes  Votes votes  Votes

1 To approve the re-appointment of  3859740 99.999 41 0.001

 Mr. . Kukkehalli Raviraj Hegde 

 (DIN: 08693808) as an Independent 

 Director of the Company 

b. To approve the re-appointment of Ms. Akshatha Rai (DIN: 00652797) as an Independent Director of the 

Company:

S. No. Special Resolution Passed Vote casted in favour Vote casted against

  Number of % of  Number of % of 

  votes  Votes votes  Votes

1 To approve the re-appointment  3859740 99.999 41 0.001

 of Ms. Akshatha Rai (DIN: 00652797) 

 as an Independent Director of the 

 Company

c. To approve the re-appointment of Mr. Shyam Daga (DIN: 00561803) as a Managing Director 

 designated as the Chairman cum Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the Company 

S. No. Special Resolution Passed Vote casted in favour Vote casted against

  Number of % of  Number of % of 

  votes  Votes votes  Votes

1 To approve the re-appointment of 3859740 99.999 41 0.001

 Mr. Shyam Daga (DIN: 00561803) 

 as a Managing Director designated as 

 the Chairman cum Managing Director 

 & Chief Executive Officer of the 

 Company 

Particulars

Relevant provisions under which 

postal ballot activity carried out

Agency engaged for providing 

remote e-voting /e-voting facility

Newspaper Advertisement 

For Postal Ballot Activity by E-Voting process Number 1. as referred above

In compliance with provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and other applicable provisions of the Act, read 

with Rules 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (“the Rules”), as 

amended from time to time, and in accordance with the General Circulars issued by the MCA vide 

Nos.14/2020, 17/2020, 22/2020, 33/2020, 39/2020, 10/2021 20/2021, 03/2022 and 11/2022dated April 

08, 2020, April 13, 2020, June 15, 2020, September 28, 2020, December 31, 2020, June 23, 2021 

December 8, 2021, May 5, 2022 and December 28, 2022 respectively, issued by MCA on account of the 

outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Company extended only the remote e-voting facility for its Share-

holders, to enable them to cast their votes electronically instead of submitting the postal ballot form.

The Company availed the services of Kfin Technologies Limited for the purpose of providing e-voting 

facility to all its Shareholders.
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Dispatch of Notice

Result of voting

Dispatch of notice of postal ballot, the details pertaining to forthcoming event i.e. Postal Ballot and 

requesting the shareholders to register their E-mail ID’s with the Company/DP’s , was  published in the 

newspaper ‘Financial Express’ in English (all India editions)  and VijayVani (Chintamani Chikaballapur 

edition) on January 25,2025

The results of postal ballot voting (through remote e-voting) along with the Scrutinizer’s report was 

displayed at the registered office of the Company and also placed on the website of the Company at the 

link: www.archidply.com and KFin Technologies Limited i.e. www.kfintech.com. The results was also be 

posted on the website of BSE Limited i.e. www.bseindia.com and NSE Limited i.e. www.nseindia.com. 

The results of postal ballot voting (through remote e-voting) along with the Scrutinizer’s report was 

displayed at the registered office of the Company and also placed on the website of the Company at the 

link: www.archidply.com and KFin Technologies Limited i.e. www.kfintech.com. The results was also be 

posted on the website of BSE Limited i.e. www.bseindia.com and NSE Limited i.e. www.nseindia.com. 

There is no immediate proposal for passing any special resolution through Postal Ballot.

4. Financial Year

The Company’s financial year was from April 1st 2024 to March 31st 2025.

5. Publication of results for the financial year 2025-26. (tentative and subject to change)

First quarter results: On or before August 14, 2025
Second quarter and half year results: On or before November 14, 2025
Third quarter results: On or before February 14, 2025
Fourth quarter results and results for the year ending
March 31, 2026: On or before May 30, 2026.

6. Date of Book Closure

24th  September, 2025 to 30th September 2025 (Both days inclusive)

7. Dividend payment date

No dividend declared for the year under review.

8. Listing on stock exchanges

The Equity shares of the Company are listed at:

Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai - 400 001

National Stock Exchange Limited (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,
Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

The annual listing fees, for the equity shares of the Company, pertaining to the year 2024-25 has been paid to the 
concerned stock exchange on demand.

9. Stock code
Stock Exchange Stock Code Type of security
Bombay Stock Exchange :Limited (BSE) 543231 Equity Shares
National Stock Exchange Limited (NSE) ADL Equity Shares
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10. Registrar & Transfer Agents.

The Registrar and share Transfer Agent of the Company is K Fin Technologies  Private Limited who can be 

contacted at the following address:

K Fin Technologies Private Limited

Karvy Selenium, Tower- B, Plot No 31 & 32.

Financial district, Nanakramguda,

 Serilingampally Mandal, Hyderabad, 500032

Tel: +91 04 67161500

Email Id: einward.ris@karvy.com.

11. Share Transfer System:

The Company has a Committee of the Board of Directors called Stakeholders Relationship Committee and takes 
necessary steps as per its terms of reference duly approved by the Board from time to time.No Share transfer 

requests were received during the Financial Year 2024-25

12. Distribution of Shareholdings 

  The distribution of shareholding as on as on 31.03.2025 is given as under:

ARCHIDPLY DECOR LTD

Distribution Schedule As On 31/03/2025

Sno Category No. of Cases % of Cases Amount  % of Amount

1 1-5000 6541 96.01 4348480.00 7.81

2 5001-  10000 156 2.29 1166540.00 2.10

3 10001-  20000 57 0.84 837890.00 1.51

4 20001-  30000 16 0.23 399370.00 0.72

5 30001-  40000 8 0.12 275540.00 0.50

6 40001-  50000 6 0.09 279860.00 0.50

7 50001- 100000 4 0.06 257280.00 0.46

8 100001&  Above 25 0.37 48097540.00 86.41

   Total: 6813 100.00 55662500.00 100.00

ARCHIDPLY DECOR LTD

Distribution Schedule As On 31/03/2025

The distribution of shareholding according to category as on 31.03.2025

Sno Description No. of Cases Total Shares % Equity

1 PROMOTERS                                          9 741771 13.33

2 PROMOTERS HUFS                                     1 5000 0.09

3 PROMOTERS BODIES CORPORATE                         5 3314608 59.55

4 RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS                               6449 1373589 24.68

5 NON RESIDENT INDIAN NON REPATRIABLE           39 3372 0.06

6 NON RESIDENT INDIANS                               56 27631 0.50

7 BODIES CORPORATES                                  31 9501 0.17

8 H U F                                              223 90778 1.63

  Total: 6813 5566250 100.00
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13. Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity.

As on 31.03.2025, of the shareholding were held in dematerialized form as per details mentioned below:

Sno Description  No of Holders Shares % To Equity

1 PHYSICAL 58 21350 0.38

2 NSDL 3044 4641126 83.38

3 CDSL 3711 903774 16.24

         

  Total: 6813 5566250 100.00

The demat ISIN of the Company’s equity shares is INE0CHO01012

14. Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments

There were no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any other Convertible Instruments as on 31.03.2025.

15. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:

The Company has not much  foreign exchange exposure towards imports, and the Imports are partially hedged

16. Plant locations

 Chintamani Survey No. 19, KSSIDC Industrial Area, Katamachanahalli, Chintamani, 

  Chikkaballapur, Karnataka, 563125

17. Address for correspondence

Registered Office:

ARCHIDPLY DECOR LTD

Sy. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial area, Bangalore road, Katmachanahalli, Chintamani, Chikaballapur, Karnataka 

-563125PH: 05944-250270, FAX: 05944-250269 

E-mail: bangalore@archidply.com   Website: www.archidplydecor.com

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): L20231KA2017PLC179929

18. List of all credit ratings obtained by the Company:

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company does not have any debt instruments or any Fixed Deposit 

Programme or any scheme or the proposal of the Company involving mobilization of funds in India or in abroad. 

There is no credit ratings obtained by the Company

19. Other Disclosures

(a) The Company does not have materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict 

 with the interests of listed entity at large; The necessary disclosure of related party transactions has been 

 made.

(b) There has been no  non-compliance by the Company  and no penalties, strictures imposed on the Company 

 by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during 

 the last three years except in FY 22, the  fine of Rs. 11800 each has been imposed on Company  by the BSE 

 & NSE Stock exchange for the 2 days delay 
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 in filing the disclosure of related party transactions under Regulation 23(9) of the SEBI (LODR), 2015 with the 

 stock exchange.

(c) The Company has establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy, and it is affirmed   that no 

 personnel has been denied access to the audit committee;

(d) The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements as prescribed in the SEBI Listing 

 Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013.; the Company has not adopted the non- mandatory requirements;

(e)  The Company has no material  subsidiaries;

(f)  The policy on  related party transactions is available on the website www.archidplydecor.com

(g)  There is no  commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities taken by the Company.

(h)  The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement. as 

 specified under Regulation 32 (7A).

(i)  a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the company have 

 been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/

 Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is annexed to this Report

(j)  During the financial year 2024-25, there was no instances where the board had not accepted any 

 recommendation of any committee of the board which is mandatorily required.

(k)  Total fees for all services paid by the Company  and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory 

 auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

 a) Statutory Audit Fee : Rs. 225000

 b) Tax Audit Fee : Rs.   50000

 c) other Consultancy : NIL

 Total  : Rs. 275000

(l) During the year in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

     Redressal) Act, 2013:

 a. number of complaints filed during the financial year : nil

 b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: nil

 c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year.: nil

(m) Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/

 companies in which directors are interested by name and amount’: nil

20. The Company has complied with the applicable requirement specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clause (b) 

to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations,2015.

21. Compliance Certificate of the Company Secretary in Practice

The  Company Secretary in Practice have certified that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corpo-

rate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations and the same is annexed to this report 

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/unclaimed suspense account:
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S.No. Particulars No. of Shareholders Outstanding shares

1 Aggregate number of shareholders and the 

 outstanding shares in the

 Suspense Account lying at the beginning 

 of the year 9 81

2 Number of shareholders to whom shares 

 were transferred from Suspense Account 

 during the year 0 0

3 Aggregate number of shareholders and the 

 outstanding shares in the Suspense Account 

 lying at the end of the year 9 81

Senior Management: 

There is no change in senior management during the year. The details of senior management are as following: 

1. Raju Ram Prajapat, CFO 2. Siva Kiran Mavoori, CS

Affirmation regarding Compliance with the Code of Conduct

 The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management of the Com-

pany. The Company has received confirmations from Board of Directors and Senior Management regarding com-

pliance of the Code during the year under review. The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Compa-

ny.

Declaration by the Chief Executive Officer on Code of Conduct this is to confirm that the Company has adopted 

the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct which is applicable to all Directors, Officer and Employees of the Com-

pany and the Code is available on the Company’s website.

 I confirm that all the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company has 

affirmed Compliance with the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct in respect of the Financial Year ended March 

31, 2025

                                                                                                                 For Archidply Décor Limited                                                                                                                                                                                         

                                                                                                                                   Shyam Daga                                                                             

                                                                                                                                         (Chairman & CEO)     

Date: August 13,2025

Place: Bengaluru
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED

SY. NO.19, KSSIDC INDUSTRIAL AREA, BANGALORE ROAD, KATMACHANAHALLI, CHINTAMANI, CHIK-

ABALLAPUR, KARNATAKA -563125

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Archidply Decor Limited(CIN: : 

L20231KA2017PLC179929) (hereinafter called the company)  for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, as 

stipulated in  under regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and 

E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

Management’s Responsibility

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company, 

including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents This responsibility 

includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compli-

ance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in SEBI Listing Regulations. 

Our Responsibility

Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 

the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion 

on the financial statements of the Company.

We have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purpose of providing 

reasonable assurance on the compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

We have conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Corporate Governance Certificate 

and the Guidance Manual on Quality of Audit & Attestation Services issued by the Institute of Company Secretar-

ies of India (“ICSI”).

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 

company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned 

SEBI(LODR)Regulation 2015 for the year ended on March 31,2025.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
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Restriction on use

The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the company solely for the purpose to enable the 

company to comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by any other person 

or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other 

purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior 

consent in writing.

For RAJNEESH SHARMA & CO, 

COMPANY SECRETARIES

(RAJNEESH SHARMA)

Proprietor

FCS: 5549; CP No: 24210

UDIN: F005549G001122225

PR No. 5544/2024

Place: Udaipur

Date: 30th August , 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report

1. Industry Structure and Developments

The global economy in 2025 continues to face uncertainty from geopolitical tensions, inflationary pressures, and 

tightening monetary policies. Despite this, India has emerged as one of the fastest growing major economies, with 

GDP growth estimated at 8.2% for FY 2024-25 (MoSPI advance estimates). Domestic consumption, infrastruc-

ture expansion, and government push for affordable housing and urbanization remain strong drivers.

The wood-based panel industry in India continues to be an integral part of the construction, housing, furniture, and 

interior design ecosystem.

- Plywood: Demand is driven by real estate, office spaces, and affordable housing. The Indian plywood market is 

- Veneer: Decorative veneers remain a premium but fast-expanding category, growing at ~8.5% CAGR. Rising 

disposable incomes, urban lifestyle changes, and demand for luxury aesthetics fuel growth.

- Particle Board & MDF: These engineered panels are increasingly favored for cost efficiency, eco-friendliness, 

and alignment with modular furniture trends. Market growth is estimated at 10–12% CAGR.

Sustainability, eco-certifications, and digital adoption in supply chains are becoming differentiators for long-term 

competitiveness.Overall, the Indian wood industry is poised to be a significant player in the global market, lever-

aging its growth potential, government support, and a strategic focus on sustainability and innovation.

2. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Opportunities:

• Housing, Infrastructure & Government Schemes: Affordable housing, Smart Cities Mission, and rapid urbaniza-

tion continue to spur demand.

• Expansion into MDF & Particle Board: Growing acceptance of engineered wood products creates diversification 

potential.

Eco-friendly & Sustainable Products: Customers increasingly demand FSC-certified, E0/E1 emission compliant 

boards, opening opportunities for premium positioning.

• Export Potential: With rising global interest in cost-competitive wood products, India can target exports to Middle 

East and Africa.

Threats:

• Raw Material Price Volatility: Resin, timber, and veneer log availability remains uncertain, though global supply 

chains have partially stabilized.

• Rising Imports: Cheaper panels from Vietnam, Malaysia, and China remain a competitive threat.

• Environmental Compliance: Stringent emission norms and certifications increase compliance costs.

• Margin Pressure: Intense competition, rising finance costs, and slower demand recovery in luxury veneer affect 

profitability.
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Despite these challenges, your Company's well-established brand, strong pan-India presence, and network of 

dedicated channel partners built over four decades serve as robust tools to withstand competition. By maintaining 

a steadfast commitment to quality, eco-friendly manufacturing practices, and consistent commercial policies, the 

Company is well-positioned to navigate market challenges and achieve its growth targets. Additionally, the intro-

duction of product variants within the same categories ensures continued relevance and appeal in a competitive 

market.

3.  Financial Performance 

The following are relevant financial performance details with respect to the operational performance of the Com-

pany.

Salient features relating to the Profit & Loss Account:

                                                                                                                                    (Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars 2024-25

Revenue from  Operation 5248.15

Other Income 123.89

Total Revenues 5,372.04

Cost of Materials Consumed  1,758.47

Purchases of Stock in Trade  2071.86

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 

Work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade   (16.37)

Employee benefits expense  524.74

Finance Costs  221.74

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses  184.58

Other Expenses  615.07

Total Expenditure  5360.09

Profit Before Tax 11.93

Tax   6.28

Profit after Tax 5.65

During the year the Company has achieved a turnover of Rs.5248.15lakhs and earns profit before Tax [PBT] of 

Rs.11.93 Lakhs and profit after taxes of Rs.5.65 lakhs. The Company's business activity fall within a single operat-

ing segment, namely 'Wood based products'. Accordingly, the disclosure requirements of Ind AS 108 - 'Operating 

Segments' are not applicable. 

Key Financial Ratios

Sl. no. Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024 Deviation Explanation

a Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.79 0.00 100.00% Term Loan taken 

     during the year

b Interest service Coverage Ratio 1.06 1.41 -25.08% Due to decrease in  

     Profit

c Debt Equity Ratio 0.39 0.37 4.61% NA

d Current Ratio 0.25 0.24 5.31% NA

e Total Debts to Total Assets 13.05 10.16 28.43% Due to decrease in 

     Trade payable

f Debtors Turnover Ratio 2.82 2.35 19.84% NA

g Inventory Turnover Ratio 5.69 5.68 0.26% NA

h Operating Margin(%) 1.27% 2.74% -53.73% Increase in COGS
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i Net Profit Margin(%) 0.11% 0.06% 78.09% Increase in profit

j Return on Equity Ratio 0.001 0.001 97.57% Increase in COGS

k Return on Capital Employed 0.03 0.04 -19.44% NA

4. OUTLOOK
The Company aims to:
- Enhance capacity utilization across all product lines.
- Strengthen its eco-friendly veneer and plywood portfolio.
- Explore MDF/particle board opportunities.
- Focus on cost optimization, better working capital management, and deeper dealer network engagement..

5. Risks and Concerns

Key risks include raw material availability, foreign competition, and volatility in interest rates. The Company 
mitigates these through long-term vendor tie-ups, prudent risk management, and emphasis on value-added cate-
gories.  The Company has established a comprehensive and integrated risk management framework, incorporat-
ing stringent norms, regulations, and a prudent control mechanism.. While the Company faces identifiable risks 
such as fluctuating interest rates, an unpredictable economy, a volatile business environment, and credit risk, 
along with uncontrollable external factors, it effectively mitigates these risks through a conservative business 
policy and diligent business practices 

6. Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

The Company has implemented  internal controls across its business processes and departments to ensure oper-
ational efficiency, adherence to internal policies, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 
These internal controls complement external oversight mechanisms, reinforcing the integrity of the Company’s 
operations. To further enhance this system, a full-time in-house internal auditor has been appointed, ensuring the 
accuracy of accounting and financial transactions and compliance with regulatory requirements.

The internal auditor regularly monitors and evaluates the Company’s internal controls, with their findings and 
observations being reviewed by the Audit Committee.
7. HUMAN CAPITAL
The Company continues to focus on employee training, safety, and retention. Industrial relations remained cordial 
during the year..
8. CAUTIONARY NOTE
Important factors such as economic developments within the country, demand and supply conditions of the indus-
try, input prices, changes in Government regulations, tax laws and other factors such as litigation and industrial 
relations, influence the Company’s operations. This may lead to the Company’s projections and approximate 
estimates to dispose them as “forward looking statements”.

Though, these qualitative aspects are usually set in the framework meaning of applicable securities laws and 
regulations. The actual results may sometimes materially differ from those expressed or implied.

          FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
                          Of ARCHIDPLY DÉCOR LIMITED

  Shyam Daga                                   
                       (Chairman)               
Place: Bangalore                                 
Date: August 13, 2025                   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of 
M/S. ARCHIDPLY DÉCOR LIMITED
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

Basis for Opinion 

-

The Company is having Inventory of Rs. 2846.10 lakhs as on 
31st March, 2025. 
Inventories are to be valued as per Ind AS 2. As described in the 

-
mining the appropriate provisions against inventory of Stores, 

upon a detailed analysis of old inventory, net realisable value 

has been done correctly

We obtained assurance over the appropriateness of the 

the inventories and related provisions by:

 the key controls addressing the risk.

 applied to ensure that purchased inventory and sold 
 inventory are correctly accounted.

 management during the year.

AS 2
• Verifying for a sample of individual products that costs 
have been correctly recorded.
• Comparing the net realisable value to the cost price of 
 inventories to check for completeness of the associated 
 provision.
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Our Conclusion:

Our audit procedures included, amongst others:

 completeness, occurrence and accuracy of revenue 
 recorded.

 trade receivables.

• Read the terms of contract including rebates and discounts 
 schemes as approved by authorized personnel.

 variances.

 liability

 assessment performed by the management.

• We read and assessed the relevant disclosures made 

Our conclusion:

-

-

based on the terms of contracts, rebates and discounts 

-

-
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conclusion thereon.

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

to do so. 

statements. 

audit. We also:

 control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
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 disclosures made by management.

-

-

for the purposes of our audit. 

-

e.

ANNUAL REPORT - 2024 - 25 

63



to us:

losses.

 

-

 by or on behalf of the Company or

2013 is not applicable to the Company.
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March, 2025.

FRN : 008099S
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March 2025

ended 31 March 2025, We report that:

-

the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. 

-

 Q1 2,722.67 2,769.85 47.18 1.73                          
 Q2 2,556.28 2,673.93 117.65 4.60   
 Q3 2,733.65 2,803.80 70.15 2.57
 Q4 2,604.59 2,846.10 241.51 9.27

during the year.

given during the year is Rs. 10.00 lakhs and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is Rs. 6.08 lakhs.
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the balance sheet date. 

 

paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the company.

applicable to the company.

-

payable.

 Act    Karnataka

-

5

5
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-

-
-

paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable.

-
-
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-

FRN: 008099S
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-

2013. 

-

material respects. 

-

-

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

Opinion 
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Accountants of India. 

FRN: 008099S
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Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2025
       
              (Amount in Lakhs) 

    31.03.2025  31.03.2024
A. ASSETS   

 (a) Property , Plant and Equipment  (including Right of Use Assets)  2   1,866.98   1,975.94 
 (b) Capital WIP  2   3.04   -   
 (c) Financial Assets   
      i)  Investments  3   0.24   0.24 
      ii) Loans  4   457.22   587.82 
      iii) Others  5   643.24   452.83 
 (d) Other Non Current Assets  6   107.31   127.31 
 

 (a) Inventories  7   2,846.10   2,740.90 
 (b) Financial Assets   
  i. Trade Receivables  8   1,807.23   1,913.46 
  ii. Cash and cash equivalent  9   39.54   31.60 
  iii. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent  10   7.63   6.05 
 (c) Other Current Assets  11   67.83   60.53 
    

 
B.    
    
 (a) Equity Share Capital  12   556.63   556.63 
 (b) Other Equity  13   4,520.21   4,518.56 
   
2.    

  i. Borrowings  14   21.53   -   

 (b) Provisions  16   96.38   74.14 

  
3.    

  i. Borrowings  18   1,933.84   1,868.66 

  iii. Trade Payables  20   
       Total Outstanding dues of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises   124.06   167.30 
       Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro    129.71   180.81 
       and small Enterprises

 (b) Short Term Provisions  22   59.49   49.55 

 

 
   

   
   

                   Partner  
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Other Income  26   123.88   117.51 

   

Cost of Goods consumed  27   1,758.47   1,730.94 
Purchase of Stock In Trade  28   2,071.86   1,681.32 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-process and stock-in-trade  29   (16.37)  (160.38)

Finance Cost  31   221.74   207.63 

Other Expenses  32   615.07   642.63 

   

Tax Expenses:   
Current Tax    16.26   15.41 
Deferred Tax Liability   (10.96)  57.98 
Taxes of earlier year   0.99   2.54 
   

Other Comprehensive Income   

Dimunision in the value of Investment   -     -   

   

   0.10   0.05 
   

On behalf of the board of directors,   
   
   
    

  
   
   

     Partner  
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 Interest Paid  208.16    191.54  

   399.33    454.48 
 Interest Received 95.08    86.71 

 
 

 Payment of Income Tax   17.23    11.30  

   

 Interest Received  95.08    86.71  
 

 Investment in Fixed Assets  78.66    183.57  
 FD Made with bank  1.59    0.24  

 Proceeds of Secured Loan  176.26    320.21  

 Repayment of Secured Loan  89.55    -    
 Prinicipal payment of lease liability  44.82    24.01  

 Interest paid  180.10    (166.28)
  

    -      -   

On behalf of the board of directors,    
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 556.63    -     556.63   -     556.63 
    

556.63   -     556.63   -     556.63 
    

    

     Income Equity 
Opening Balance  2,948.32   1,540.67   29.56   4,518.56 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period  2,948.32   1,546.32   25.57   4,520.21 
    

    
    

     Income Equity 

Opening Balance  2,948.32   1,537.82   22.93   4,509.06 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period  2,948.32   1,540.67   29.56   4,518.56 
    

    
    

On behalf of the board of directors,    
    

      
    

Partner
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Note: - 1  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 Archidply Décor Limited (the ‘Company’) is a Listed company domiciled in India incorporated under the provisions of the 

 Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of: 

 Wood Based Products: 

                                                                              

  plan assets through other comprehensive income.

 applicable to the Company.

 accordingly.

4. Equity

 a) Ordinary Shares
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 OWNED ASSET

  are incurred.

   lease and
  (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

  of the lease.
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6. Lease Property
 

 lable period of a lease.

9. Impairment of Assets

 their present value.

10. Inventories
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  transferred the control of the asset.

  trade receivables.

 i) 

ANNUAL REPORT - 2024 - 25 

80



 ii) Equity instruments 

  net of direct issue costs.

 iii) 

 iv) Subsequent Measurement -

 v) 

 applicable.
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 is probable.

 (b) held primarily for the purpose of trading

 (b)  it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

  period. 

22. Provisions
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    0.24    0.24 

       

               Loan to Others   457.22    587.82 
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 AUTHORIZED      

       
 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED, AND PAID UP      

      

 aggregate shares in the Company.      
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d.  Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters      

 Shyam Daga   1,71,161   3.07   -     1,71,161   3.07 

 Usha Daga   1,90,085   3.41   -     1,90,085   3.41 
 Viresh Vyas   10   0.00   -     10   0.00 
 Arpita Daga   24,950   0.45   -     24,950   0.45 

    
       

       

a Share Premium     2,948.32    2,948.32 

       
      4,520.21    4,518.56 
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    32.44    -   

     21.53    -   
       

     
    

     
       

 

     60.25    45.41 

    36.13    28.72 
     

     

 1. WDV   (1.76)   49.19 
 2. Gratuity   (3.42)   1.30 

     (12.30)   60.21 

    

     

     (Amount in Lakhs)  (Amount in Lakhs)
 HDFC Bank   1,015.71    889.24 
 Kotak Bank   907.22    979.42 
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          - Term Loan     10.91    -   
     

     52.83    44.82 

      
     

      

    
       

    
       

HDFC Bank: Working 

(1st Pari Passu)

Kotak Bank : Working 

Bank)

-
anahalli, Chintamani, Chikka-

-
anahalli, Chintamani, Chikka-

 1. Shyam Daga  

 
 
 

 1. Shyam Daga 
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 Statutory Dues Payables     43.44    43.08 
 Other Payables*     19.85    20.28 

      

      

       
      

       

       

      

      
 
      14.79    34.10 

      

      7.71    14.82 
       
      

 Flush Door     92.64    93.12
 Others     168.93    147.37
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 Paper in Kgs 22,711   63.83   23,439   63.13 
 Timber in Cum  2,665   249.96   2,044   125.67 

 Others  21.99   -     40.13 
    

 

 Others   -      -   
     

       

 Club Membership Fees   0.19    0.61 

      
       

  
     (Rs.)  (Rs.)

 Club Membership   

       

  

 Interest on Term Loan   1.60  -   
 Other Interest   1.00  0.09 

 Corporate Guarantee Fees   0.25   12.50 
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 Repairs to Others     12.07    35.42 
      

       

 Rent     3.57     24.07 

      467.37     445.01 
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2 Commitments     NIL   NIL 

  

  

  

Interest Cost - CY     3.66   4.40 

  

  
Current Liability     3.80   5.04 
Non Current Liability     60.25   45.41 

  

Interest Cost     3.66   4.40 

Curtailments  

      -     -   
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(i) Market Risk    

    

    

      (Amount in Lakhs)

    

rates.    
    

      in Lakhs)

     -50  -9.61   

     -50  -9.34
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-

    

Loans     457.22   587.82   

CURRENT    

      

    

  

    

    

      (Amount in Lakhs)

   

   2,322.95   52.83  236.03   2,611.81 
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II. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

Note: - 41:- Earning Per Share:
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    (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
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           Cost     Cost
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   term loans

   payable  

  items)   
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

Only Shareholders or Proxies will be allowed to attend the meeting

Registered Folio / DP ID & Client ID :

Name and Address of the Shareholder :

Joint Holder(s) :

No. of Shares : 

I / We hereby record my / our presence at the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on Tues-

day, 30th September, 2025 at 12.30 P.M. at the registered office of the Company at SY. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial 

Area, Bangalore road, Katmachanahalli, Chintamani, Chikaballapur, Karnataka -563125.

 Signature of Shareholder(s) 1. _________________  

          2. _________________

    

 Signature of Proxy holder(s)    __________________  

Note:

1. Shareholders attending the meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete 

 the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting venue.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

  EVSN       Sequence Number

Note:

Please read the note no. 24 to the Notice of the 8th Annual General Meeting dated Tuesday, 30th September, 

2025 at 12:30 p.m., being sent herewith, in respect of the instructions for voting through electronic means. The 

voting period starts from 10:00 a.m. on 27th September, 2025 and ends at 5:00 p.m. on 29th September, 2025. 
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Form No. MGT-11 PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014]

 CIN    L20231KA2017PLC179929

 Name of Company  ARCHIDPLY DECOR LIMITED

 Registered Office  SY. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial Area, Bangalore road, 

     Katmachanahalli, Chintamani, Chikaballapur, 

     Karnataka -563125

 Name of the 

 Member(s): 

 Registered Address: 

 E-mail Id: 

 Folio No./ 

 Client Id: DP ID: 

 I / We, being the member(s) of ______________ shares of the above named company, 

 hereby appoint:

 1) Name: _________________________________________________________  

   Address:________________________________________________ Email 

  Id: ______________________ Signature: ______________  , or failing him/her

 2) Name: _________________________________________________________  

   Address: _______________________________________________ Email 

  Id: _______________________ Signature: ______________, or failing him/her

 3) Name: _________________________________________________________  

  Address: _______________________________________________ Email 

  Id: _______________________ Signature:_____________________________

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual General Meeting 

of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, the 30th September, 2025 at 12:30 p.m. at SY. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial 

Area, Bangalore road, Katmachanahalli, Chintamani, Chikaballapur, Karnataka -563125 and at any adjournment 

thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Signed this _________ day of _______   2025.

Signature of Shareholder: _________________ 

Signature of proxy holder(s): _______________ 

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at 

 the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the 

 commencement of the Meeting.

Affix 
Revenue 

Stamp
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Archidply Decor Limited

Corporate Office:

Archidply Decor Ltd - Bonvivant Collective

No 50, Millenium Towers, Queens Road, 

Swamy Shivanandapuram, Shivaji Nagar,

Karnataka 560051

Phone no : 7022012573

Email: bangalore@archidply.com

Registered Office:

Sy. No.19, KSSIDC Industrial Area, Bangalore,

Bangalore Rd, Katamachanhalli, Chintamani,

Karnataka 563125

Phone no : +91 94484 19394

CIN : L2023IKA2017PLC179929

Email: bangalore@archidply.com

www.archidplydecor.com
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